City of Fort Lauderdale

City Hall 100 North Andrews Avenue Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301 www.fortlauderdale.gov



Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, July 9, 2019 1:30 PM

City Commission Conference Room

City Commission Conference Meeting

FORT LAUDERDALE CITY COMMISSION

DEAN J. TRANTALIS Mayor

ROBERT L. McKINZIE Vice Mayor - Commissioner - District III

HEATHER MORAITIS Commissioner - District I

STEVEN GLASSMAN Commissioner - District II

BEN SORENSEN Commissioner - District IV

CHRIS LAGERBLOOM, City Manager JOHN HERBST, City Auditor JEFFREY A. MODARELLI, City Clerk ALAIN E. BOILEAU, City Attorney

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Trantalis called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m.

Commission Members Present: Commissioner Heather Moraitis, Commissioner Steven Glassman, Vice Mayor Robert L. McKinzie, Commissioner Ben Sorensen, and Mayor Dean J. Trantalis

QUORUM ESTABLISHED

Also Present: City Manager Chris Lagerbloom, City Clerk Jeffrey A. Modarelli, City Attorney Alain E. Boileau, City Auditor John Herbst and Sergeant at Arms Tarek Bazzi

<u>19-0669</u>

Communications to the City Commission - (Commission Districts 1, 2, 3 and 4)

Board of Adjustment (BOA) June 12, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

Discussion ensued on the Administrative Variance Process. City Attorney Alain Boileau commented on the setup of the BOA and its quasi-judicial capacity. He expounded on related details, recommending that this proposal not be pursued. Mayor Trantalis commented on his experience regarding this topic. Vice Mayor McKinzie concurred with City Attorney Boileau's position, discussing his perspective concerning homeowners and developers. Mayor Trantalis noted that the current system works.

LauderTrail Working Group (LauderTrail)
June 13, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' request for additional comments regarding the agenda of LauderTrail, Commissioner Sorensen expounded on his efforts to address goals of *LauderTrail*, *Mockingbird Trail* and *Rails-to-Trails*. Commissioner Moraitis requested assurance that work is ongoing with the railroad. Commissioner Sorensen discussed conversations with Florida East Coast (FEC) Railway and

Virgin Trains USA, noting their openness to using the FEC right-of-way for the proposed program, expounding on details.

Mayor Trantalis recommended scheduling a Joint Workshop Meeting (Workshop) on this topic. Commissioner Sorensen confirmed that the Commission and Staff are responsible for coordination with FEC and his willingness to facilitate during the Commission Summer Break.

Vice Mayor McKinzie inquired about addressing wayfinding signage. Mayor Trantalis said that this topic would be discussed at the Joint Meeting, noting the importance of maintaining trail identity.

Commissioner Moraitis suggested including the Broward County Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) in these discussions, noting that they have bike lane funding. Vice Mayor McKinzie expounded on related details.

In response to Commissioner Glassman's question regarding efforts to include artist participation in wayfinding signage, City Manager Chris Lagerbloom noted that this has not been done up to this point. Commission Glassman recommended the inclusion of artists for wayfinding signage. Mayor Trantalis confirmed contributions by artists who are members of Mockingbird Trail Working, noting that it is an excellent first step towards Commissioner Glassman's recommendation.

Marine Advisory Board (MAB) June 6, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, City Attorney Alain Boileau confirmed that there is a new boat slip layout, commenting on details related to the land for super-yacht slips. He explained the request for input and other details.

Commissioner Glassman requested the MAB Meeting Minutes related to the backup of items R-5 and R-6 on tonight's Regular Commission Agenda. City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed that the draft minutes would be forwarded.

Education Advisory Board (EAB) June 20, 2019

Meeting

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding a budget amendment on tonight's Commission Regular Meeting Agenda funding items for Bennett Elementary School, City Manager Lagerbloom explained related details. He confirmed he would provide further details on this budget amendment at tonight's Commission Meeting.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Phil Thornburg, Director of the Parks and Recreation Department. Mr. Thornburg explained that capital items built on school property become joint use. He cited examples that allow community access to open greenspace areas owned by the Broward County School Board (School Board). Joint agreements are in place with the School Board to allow the use of school property during evenings and weekends. Mr. Thornburg explained how the budget amendment funding would allow community use of the greenspace at Bennett Elementary School during off-hours.

Commissioner Glassman said that he has been working with the Poinsettia Heights Civic Association on this request, noting that there are no parks in the Poinsettia Heights Neighborhood. Vice Mayor McKinzie recommended informing the Parks, Recreation and Beaches (PR&B) Board of this policy to use what is available, noting the possibility of additional opportunities. Mayor Trantalis commented on churches located in Poinsettia Heights.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question regarding a deadline for assessment of these types of School Board properties by the PR&B Board, Mr. Thornburg confirmed this would be part of the Parks Bond efforts, citing examples and expounding on related details. Mr. Thornburg explained that the School Board is looking for capital infusion into these sites to improve play value. Commissioner Sorensen noted his understanding of this topic.

Zoie Saunders, Chief Education Officer, confirmed that the Education Advisory Board (EAB) is interested in joint use in order to maximize the benefits of open space. She expounded on details related to the Joint Agreement in place with the School Board.

Mr. Thornburg noted that some School Board sites would require a large amount of capital. He commented on efforts and details related to Virginia Shuman Young Elementary School.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen, Ms. Saunders gave a brief overview of her understanding of what had been identified in order to meet School Board safety requirements. She confirmed conversations with Mr. Thornburg, the Broward County Public School Leadership Team and schools regarding an estimate of additional costs. Mr. Thornburg commented on the need to address the administrative impact when adding additional sites.

In response to Commissioner Moraitis' question regarding neighbors having access to pools at Sunrise Middle School and Fort Lauderdale High School, Mr. Thornburg commented on an existing agreement with Fort Lauderdale High School. He confirmed he could revisit residents having pool access, explaining related details. Further comment ensued. Mayor Trantalis agreed.

Commissioner Glassman commented on the large membership of the EAB. In response to Commissioner Glassman's question regarding the ability of the EAB to establish a quorum at meetings, Ms. Saunders confirmed a quorum had been established at each EAB meeting over the last three months. She noted that attendance records listed in this correspondence reflect attendance during the June 2018 - June 2019 timeframe, noting reinstatements. Further comment ensued.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's question, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed the need for further research into a recent email before commenting and making a recommendation.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Amy Ellowitz, Vice Chair of the EAB. Ms. Ellowitz confirmed the aim of the EAB is to use the current one-year learning gain metric, commenting on details related to consideration of another metric and expounding on details. Comment ensued on using this metric and the EAB taking alternate action.

Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Board June 19, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' request for comments, City Manager Lagerbloom requested additional context, i.e., this communication applying on a City-wide basis or only to the barrier island.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Ella Parker, Urban Design and Planning

Manager, Department of Sustainable Development. In response to Vice Mayor McKinzie's question, Ms. Parker explained that this communication relates to traffic analysis in general, expounding on details related to analyzing traffic impact, development mitigation, considering other modes of transportation and information provided to the P&Z Board Members. She confirmed that Staff provides Executive Summaries from Traffic Analysis Reports to P&Z Board members. The Transportation and Mobility (TAM) Staff supplements these Executive Summaries. This information moves forward with projects going before the Commission. Ms. Parker expounded on related details.

Mayor Trantalis commented on the genesis of this communication and the significance of traffic and trip counts as discussed at the June 18, 2019 Commission Regular Meeting (Meeting) for the analysis of new barrier island project proposals. He noted public input regarding the traffic analysis presented at that Meeting. Mayor Trantalis commented on the need for accuracy when calculating the impact of a project trips and an understanding of the remaining trips available within an area to accurately assess project viability.

Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his understanding of Staff input at the Meeting regarding trip counts. Further comment and discussion ensued. Ms. Parker noted comments from P&Z Board Member Jay Shechtman regarding alternate modes of transportation, i.e., scooters, and their impact on traffic analysis.

Economic Development Advisory Board (EDAB) June 12, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

Mayor Trantalis noted previous comments by City Attorney Alain Boileau regarding member collaboration.

It was confirmed that all subcommittee meetings would be noticed and held in an easily accessible public place. City Attorney Boileau said that Staff would guide the EDAB to meet all requirements.

Parks, Recreation & Beaches (PR&B) Board June 26, 2019

A copy of this communication is attached to these minutes.

Commissioner Glassman confirmed the PR&B Board support of the Public Art Ordinance.

CITY COMMISSION REPORTS

Members of the Commission announced recent and upcoming events and matters of interest.

Commissioner Moraitis commented on District I Pre-Agenda Meeting discussions regarding the topic of scooters. Staff hosted a discussion regarding water billing, the Water and Sewer Rate Study, the proposed pro-ration of separate irrigation line costs and the Digital Meter Installation Program. She thanked Staff for their participation and providing an update on the current review of water bills which is being done on a District by District basis throughout the City. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his perspective. Further comment and discussion ensued.

Commissioner Glassman thanked Fire and Rescue Services and Community Emergency Response Services (CERT) for their participation in the Hurricane Preparedness Meeting hosted by the Lake Ridge Civic Association and the Council of Fort Lauderdale Civic Associations.

Commissioner Glassman announced that the pool at Bahia Mar is open to the public at no charge.

Commissioner Glassman discussed his attendance at the Middle River Terrace Civic Association Meeting, commenting on the Florida Atlantic University (FAU) presentation regarding Climate Change and Sea Level Rise, expounding on details.

Commissioner Glassman commented on his Quarterly District II Civic Association President Roundtable Lunch (Luncheon), noting the excellent exchange of ideas. He thanked Staff for its respective Budget and Code Enforcement presentations, expounding on details and recommending that the Code Enforcement presentation be shared City-wide.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding neighbor feedback on vacation rentals, Commissioner Glassman noted a reduction in complaints and related emails, stating that concerns remain and expounded on neighbor efforts to be on top of this issue.

Vice Mayor McKinzie noted concerns related to a vacation rental vendor

who does not comply with registration efforts. Further comment and discussion ensued on requiring that vacation rental properties be registered with the City and the information provided in the Code Enforcement presentation at the Luncheon.

Commissioner Sorensen commented on the assistance offered to the City of Plantation in response to the recent gas-leak incident, expounding on details.

Commissioner Sorensen discussed the ongoing challenges regarding panhandling at the SE 17th Street/Federal Highway-US 1 intersection, recommending that City Manager Lagerbloom and a representative from the Police Department join him for an area visit to include meeting area business owners for a clearer understanding of what is transpiring to develop solutions.

Vice Mayor McKinzie shared efforts to address similar concerns in the area of NW 7th Avenue and Broward Boulevard, and in other areas of District III, expounding on related details.

Commissioner Sorensen requested feedback regarding holding Commission Conference Meetings and Joint Workshops in Commission Chambers. Comment and discussion ensued on the dynamics and the importance of interaction during Conference and Workshop Meetings. Commissioner Sorensen commented on his position regarding safety precautions available in Commission Chambers.

Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on a recent Public Works related incident in the area of NW 37th and 38th Streets and its impact on a nearby waterway. City Manager Lagerbloom explained details regarding the water alert sent to neighbors, which was sent in an abundance of caution. Joseph Kenney, Assistant Public Works Director - Engineering explained details regarding a leak in an 18-inch force main, confirming that repairs have started. It is on the priority list but does not have funding.

Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his perspective and experience regarding addressing similar situations and associated restrictions, expounding on details. Mr. Kenney said that the force main is old and the leak seems to be minor. Vice Mayor McKinzie recommended improved communications when informing the public. Mayor Trantalis concurred, commenting on related details.

In response to Commissioner Sorensen's questions regarding the

communication of Community Alerts (Alerts) to neighbors, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed that available technology has the ability to deliver alerts via text messages and that the Call Center sends out Alerts. He confirmed the need for further research into segregating out Alerts to impacted areas.

Mayor Trantalis confirmed the upcoming commissioning of the *USS Paul Ignatius* on July 27, 2019, at 10:00 a.m., expounding on related details and urged Commission attendance. City Manager Lagerbloom commented on the need to submit attendee names to coordinate attendance details. He noted that the event breakfast and the commissioning are separate. City Manager Lagerbloom said that twenty (20) invitations are available for breakfast, expounding on related details. Further comment and discussion ensued.

Mayor Trantalis commented on his attendance at an upcoming Mayors Conference in Columbia. The Country of Singapore is coordinating the event and funding his attendance.

Mayor Trantalis reviewed accomplishments from the recent Trade Mission to Israel (Trade Mission), noting that it had also been emailed. He recommended that going forward, the need for a mechanism to address the development of an agenda for these types of trips and attendees.

Mayor Trantalis commented on concerns related to the Sunshine Law, expounding on details related to policy discussions when more than one Commission member attends meetings or events. He commented that when attending the National League of Cities events, policies are not discussed. Mayor Trantalis said that he would consider the option of not attending events that include policy discussion when attended by another Commission member. He suggested Commission members coordinate attendance at meetings that include policy discussions, expounding on details. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on his perspective and the genesis of the Trade Mission. Further comment and discussion ensued regarding the Trade Mission deliverables, future investment and the need for follow-up.

Commissioner Moraitis noted plans to attend Washington, D.C. Chamber of Commerce (Chamber) Meetings in September 2019. Mayor Trantalis commented on the format of those meetings, noting that policy is not discussed among Commission members. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented that policy is communicated through City lobbyists.

CONFERENCE REPORTS

CF-1 19-0710

Carr, Riggs & Ingram (CRI) Interim Status Report #2 - Parking Garage, Las Olas Boulevard Corridor Improvements and Aquatic Center Renovation Projects - (Commission District 2)

City Auditor John Herbst said that this item is the Second Interim Status Report (Report) done by Carr, Riggs & Ingram (CRI). It is part of the continuous audit of the three construction projects located within and funded by the Beach Area Community Redevelopment Agency (Beach Area CRA). It includes the Las Olas Parking Garage (Garage), Las Olas Boulevard Corridor Improvements and Aquatic Center Renovation Project.

City Auditor Herbst reviewed the recap listed on page four (4) in Exhibit 1 of the Commission Agenda Memo (CAM), monthly pay applications for accuracy, appropriateness and authorizations. The second part of this Report reviewed the contract and contract development. The third part of the Report addressed contract negotiations for the Aquatic Complex. The fourth part of the Report addressed the \$1,500,000 Change Order, which came before the Commission several months ago. The fifth part of the Report is the review of the proposed EDSA Change Order.

City Auditor Herbst explained items found during the review in need of correction. He explained there were inappropriate charges, errors made and lack of sufficient documentation, noting that these are typical for a large construction project and expounding on details related to the need for additional follow-through and other items. From a financial perspective, on-site auditors ensure a quality product. City Auditor Herbst noted the collaborative process among CRA Staff, Skanska Staff and the Audit Staff.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, City Auditor Herbst confirmed his satisfaction with the results to date. City Auditor Herbst noted items such as weather delays and other items typically found during the course of large construction projects, expounding on details.

Commissioner Glassman said that the Report is excellent reading. He confirmed the importance of CRI monitoring input from CRA Staff and Audit Staff.

Positive comments and discussion ensued on the LED lighting on the Garage during the Fourth of July Holiday. Mayor Trantalis noted the need for additional programming of the LED lighting on the Garage.

OLD/NEW BUSINESS

BUS-1 19-0550

2019 State Legislative Session Update - (Commission Districts 1, 2, 3, and 4)

Mayor Trantalis recognized Lauren Jackson, Governmental Relations Consultant, TSE Consulting. Ms. Jackson discussed scheduling conflicts that prevented other legislative team members from attending. She confirmed that the entire team would be attending the September 2019 Commission Workshop, expounding on details.

Ms. Jackson commented on the new legislature seated in the recent State Legislative Session. She explained details related to the \$91,100,000,000 State Budget that included the veto of \$131,000,000 worth of budget items by Governor DeSantis.

Ms. Jackson reviewed State Budget funding impacting the City that includes \$250,000 for the Homelessness Collaborative specifically requested through the City. There is a statewide increase per student in education funding in the amount of \$242. She noted additional budget allocations related to the Everglades, water quality improvements, economic development grant funding and a small increase in cultural museum grants.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed that Staff is working directly with the lobbying firms to coordinate and apply for available grant funding.

Ms. Jackson reviewed legislation that addresses texting while driving, which went into effect on July 1, 2019, commenting on related details.

Ms. Jackson commented on the unique legislative process involved with vacation rentals and proposed legislative bills. She explained details regarding legislation presented by State Representative Chip LaMarca that would have held vacation rental platforms more accountable.

State Senator David Simmons sponsored a bill that would have struck a balance between local governments and communities desiring vacation rental protection and the vacation rental industry. Committees heard these proposed bills. Ms. Jackson commented on efforts regarding a bill sponsored by the vacation rental industry that is expected to return next year.

Ms. Jackson requested the data referenced earlier by Commissioner

Glassman that was provided during the Code Enforcement Vacation Rental Presentation at the District II Quarterly Civic Association Presidents Roundtable Luncheon.

Ms. Jackson said Committees did not hear legislation regarding smoking on the beach.

Ms. Jackson confirmed that a bill sponsored by State Representative Chip LaMarca passed. The bill creates funding for a Beach Management Program similar to the Five-Year Work Program used for transportation.

Ms. Jackson updated the Commission on proposed legislation regarding Sports Franchise Agreements, confirming it would not impact the City due to a grandfather clause. It is expected to return next year.

Ms. Jackson updated the Commission on the status of preemption bills, including control of rights-of-way for providers of communication services, expounding on related details. She said that the League of Cities has filed a lawsuit against the State challenging the 2017 law, explaining associated details.

Ms. Jackson explained details regarding successful preemption bills. Her comments addressed HB 1159 (Tree trimming preemption), SB 1000 (Small cell preemption) and HB 829 (Attorney fees in preemption challenges), HB 7103 (Omnibus developer package), (Building Code Enforcement funds). The Pass/Fail Report provided by the lobbying firms includes details of these bills and is part of the backup to this item.

Discussion ensued on HB 829, which passed. It awards attorney's fees to the prevailing party when legal challenges to preemption are initiated against a State or federal law. In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding this topic, City Attorney Alain Boileau explained that if the City files an action against the State on a preemption issue, the City would be responsible for all attorney fees should the State prevail.

City Attorney Boileau confirmed the position of the City regarding ongoing Gun Show related litigation in Leon County. He explained the position of the City, stating that The Gun Show litigation is prospective and that the State could not pursue legal fees. Ms. Jackson concurred.

Ms. Jackson expounded on the main points included in the Omnibus Developer Package legislation, including enforcement of Building Code Enforcement funds that passed. This legislation impacts inclusionary

housing; development orders; earmarking impact fees; building permit fees; private inspection providers; award of the prevailing party's attorney fees in development challenges; school impact fees; shortened or specific timelines for local government actions and limitations on reviews; and other items.

Ms. Jackson commented on building permit fee funds maintained by the City. City Attorney Boileau confirmed current restrictions which are similar to the legislated formula. He confirmed the management of excess permit fees through rebates. In response to Vice Mayor McKinzie's questions, a discussion ensued on who would receive rebates, the permitting process and enforcement.

Ms. Jackson briefly commented on other bills that passed, including those that address education, the Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), Fire Fighter benefits and tax cuts.

Mayor Trantalis opened discussions regarding Dockless Mobility (Scooter) legislation. He reviewed his efforts with City Manager Lagerbloom at the State Legislature on this topic, commenting on related updates and City practices. The new law equates Scooter riding with bicycle riding and allows local municipalities to regulate where Scooters could be used. Mayor Trantalis explained the impact of this legislation, citing examples. He requested Staff develop a set of regulations and subsequent Commission recommendations at the end of the Summer Break. Mayor Trantalis recommended each District Commissioner meet with City Manager Lagerbloom to express their position on this topic.

Mayor Trantalis commented on the lobbying efforts of Ron Book on behalf of other clients that conflict with the City interests on the topic of Scooters.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Stan Eichelbaum. Mr. Eichelbaum commented on concerns regarding Scooter usage in the downtown area, the need for immediate action related to late-night Scooter use on New River Drive and use on pedestrian-oriented Las Olas Boulevard.

Mr. Eichelbaum also commented on the need for an in-depth review of the dynamics related to the HB 7103 Omnibus Developer Package legislation, discussing related concerns. Mayor Trantalis concurred with the sensitivity towards HB 7103, stating that Legal Staff would provide an analysis of the challenges presented by this legislation. Mr. Eichelbaum requested discussions with other municipalities, expounding on details. Mayor Trantalis noted the upcoming Florida League of Cities meeting,

confirming he would raise this topic for discussion.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Michael Weymouth, The Las Olas Company. Mr. Weymouth commented on his overall support of Scooters, stating that they do not work on sidewalks in pedestrian-oriented areas. He requested suspension of Scooter ridership in pedestrian-oriented areas along Las Olas Boulevard, expounding on related details.

BUS-2 19-0547

Public Art Presentation and Discussion - (Commission Districts 1, 2, 3 and 4)

Mayor Trantalis recognized Phil Thornburg, Director of Parks and Recreation. Mr. Thornburg gave a presentation on Public Art, stating that the presentation brings forward high-level points of discussion for Commission direction moving forward.

A copy of the presentation is attached to these minutes.

Mr. Thornburg reviewed approaches to Public Art funding as discussed in the presentation. Funding approaches not included in projects would go into a Public Art Fund for utilization throughout the City.

Mayor Trantalis questioned the ability to impose a two percent (2%) assessment fee (Fee) on a private development. Mr. Thornburg said this is something other municipalities are doing and would be at the direction of the Commission.

Commissioner Glassman requested additional information regarding the number of other municipalities imposing a Fee on private development. Mr. Thornburg confirmed that 34 municipalities in South Florida and around the country were researched and seventeen (17) impose a Fee.

Mayor Trantalis discussed the opportunity to impose this Fee on public projects, noting it is something controlled by the City. Further comment and discussion ensued.

Mayor Trantalis questioned the ability to impose the Fee on Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) funds. City Attorney Boileau confirmed the need to research. Further comment and discussion ensued.

Mr. Thornburg reviewed exclusions as discussed in the presentation.

Commissioner Glassman questioned Fees going into a Public Art Fund for utilization throughout the City. Mr. Thornburg explained that the non-feasibility of art in a specific project would need to be proven and

that the Commission would need to make that decision.

Commissioner Glassman acknowledged the attendance of members from the Broward County Cultural Division and Public Art Program. He confirmed his desire for their input and more information regarding private development.

Commissioner Glassman asked about membership details of a Public Art and a Placemaking Board (Board). Mr. Thornburg confirmed the recommended number of members on the Board is seven (7), confirming that Broward County (County) has this type of Board in place. Mr. Thornburg said that the County has indicated its openness to administering this initiative on behalf of the City and using their services to ramp up City efforts.

Commissioner Glassman commented on the use of the word "Placemaking" in the title of the Board. Mr. Thornburg explained that it relates to making a place for Public Art. Mayor Trantalis noted that Public Art often becomes a community gathering spot that serves as a sense of place. Commissioner Glassman commented on Public Art being functional, citing examples.

In response to Commissioner Moraitis' question regarding other funding approaches, Mr. Thornburg confirmed ongoing pursuit of grant opportunities for Public Art, expounding on details and noting that there are not many grant opportunities available for Public Art.

In response to Commissioner Moraitis' question regarding the use of the Parks Bond for Public Art, City Attorney Boileau said he would advocate that it could be used. Commissioner Moraitis commented on pursuing this option in lieu of a private development Fee. She noted the opportunity for Public Art at the new Joint Government Center. Further comment ensued.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Phillip Dunlap, Director of Broward County's Cultural Division. Mr. Dunlap discussed support of the City's Public Art initiative, commenting on positive initial meetings with Commissioner Glassman, City Manager Lagerbloom and their respective Staff.

Mr. Dunlap commented on the Fees for eligible County projects that include two percent (2%) on eligible construction projects and one percent (1%) on transportation projects across the Board. He discussed the process of working with County Agencies and the County Budget Office to ensure proper allocation of Fees. Art Projects can be

integrated into a building or can be freestanding pieces of art, expounding on related details and his perspective. The Broward County Cultural Division is happy to support this initiative. Mr. Dunlap commented on the potential to use County resources paired with City resources to explore ideas for collaboration of Public Art Projects and strengthening this relationship.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Evan Snow, Co-Founder and Managing Partner Of Art Fort Lauderdale & Choose954. Mr. Snow commented on his perspective regarding having significant Public Art in the City. He discussed how Public Art and investing in the arts would contribute towards growth and investment, expounding on details and confirming his support.

Mayor Trantalis recognized Leslie Fordham, Public Arts Administrator - Broward County. Ms. Fordham thanked the Commission for consideration of this item, noting the economic benefits of Public Art. She confirmed the need for Public Art to have a regular funding source and that Broward County imposes the Fee discussed earlier. Ms. Fordham commented on additional models for funding, including Capital Improvement Project (CIP) Budget Funding which is the most common. Billboard taxes are also a model for funding. She discussed ways in which mitigation provides an opportunity for developers to provide Public Art. Ms. Fordham urged the City to call upon the County for any assistance.

In response to Mayor Trantalis' question regarding Commission direction, City Manager Lagerbloom recommended Staff draft a proposed Public Arts Ordinance. With regard to public projects, City Manager Lagerbloom confirmed the need for further research with the Office of the City Attorney regarding the imposition of a Fee on private projects.

Commissioner Glassman commented on reaching out to those cities that impose this Fee. City Attorney Boileau commented on a State Statute passed in 2015 on government exactions addressing this type of issue, expounding on details. He also commented on the 2013 U.S. Supreme Court decision regarding fees on private property, commenting on related details. City Attorney Boileau discussed legal aspects of the State Statute and the U.S. Supreme Court decision.

Commissioner Glassman recommended communicating, through an education process, that this request is not adversarial in nature. Through the development process, it would be illustrated how Public Art might

improve and enhance a development project. Further comment and discussion ensued. Vice Mayor McKinzie commented on the need to provide incentives.

Commissioner Glassman confirmed support to further exploring this option. He referenced an article he distributed to the Commission, expounding on details.

A copy of this article is attached to these minutes.

Meeting Minutes

Commissioner Moraitis suggested having Pubic Art in pocket parks.

Mr. Thornburg requested confirmation that the Commission is open to talking with the County and the option of the County administering the Pubic Arts initiative on behalf of the City. Mayor Trantalis and Commissioner Glassman noted their support. Commissioner Moraitis reiterated her support of exploring pocket parks.

EXECUTIVE CLOSED DOOR SESSION - 4:30 P.M. OR AS SOON THEREAFTER AS POSSIBLE

<u>19-0694</u> The City Commission will meet privately pursuant to Florida Statute, Section 286.011(8) concerning:

Hinton, Walter, et al. v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No.: CACE 07-030358 (26)

Adderly, Ray, et al. v. City of Fort Lauderdale Case No.: CACE 11-008499 (26)

Mayor Trantalis announced the commencement of the Executive Closed Door Session and related details.

CITY MANAGER REPORTS

None.

ADJOURNMENT

Mayor Trantalis adjourned the meeting at 3:41 p.m.